
RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
Minutes of the Trustees of Sycamore Township Meeting 

Sycamore Township, Hamilton County, Ohio 
December 1, 2020 

NOTE: Due to the COVID-19 pandemic and the issuance of guidelines to limit public gatherings to ten 
people or less by Governor DeWine and the Director of the Ohio Department of Health, and due to 
enabling legislation (House Bill 404) which extended the ability of local governments in Ohio to meet 
remotely during this time, this meeting was held without members of the public physically present.  Video 
of the meeting was live streamed to the public on the internet. 

The meeting was called to order at 9:02 a.m. Present for the meeting were Chairman LaBarbara, Vice 
Chairman James, Trustee Weidman, Fiscal Officer Porter, Law Director Desai (remotely), Administrator 
Warrick, Superintendent/Assistant Administrator Kellums, Planning & Zoning Administrator Miller and 
Fire Chief Penny. Lt. Tarr from the Hamilton County Sheriff’s Office was absent.  

SWEARING IN OF NEW FIREFIGHTERS 
Chairman LaBarbara administered the Firefighter Oath to new firefighters Mark Pitocco and Kevin 
Rogers, and to Firefighter Tim Feichtner who was promoted to Lieutenant. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
A motion to adjourn into Executive Session with Attorney Scott Sollmann as permitted by Ohio 
Revised Code Section 121.22 to discuss ongoing litigation was made by Mr. LaBarbara and seconded 
by Mr. Weidman.   

Mr. LaBarbara called roll:  Vote:  James: Aye;  LaBarbara: Aye; Weidman: Aye 

Mr. LaBarbara invited the following people into the Executive Session with the Trustees: Administrator 
Ray Warrick, Tracy Kellums and Skylor Miller. 

End regular session:    9:08 a.m. 

Begin Executive Session:    9:10 a.m. 

End Executive Session:  9:43 a.m. 

Back in regular session:  9:46 a.m. 

Mr. LaBarbara called roll all three Trustees indicated they were present. 

Approval of the November 17, 2020 Trustees Workshop Meeting Minutes  
The November 17, 2020 Trustees Workshop Meeting Minutes were presented for approval.  Mr. 
LaBarbara made a motion, seconded by Mr. Weidman to accept them.  Mr. LaBarbara called roll.  
Vote: All Aye.      

FISCAL OFFICER ITEMS 
Mr. Porter had no report. 



EMS AND FIRE ITEMS 
COVID-19 Update 
Chief Penny reported since the last meeting there have been 97 additional residents quarantined at 
home in the Township and 46 people have been cleared. 
 
Chief Penny reported he had ordered signs to direct people to drop off items at Firehouse lobby and 
containing a phone number to call for assistance. 
 
Mr. Weidman asked if the department had received additional PPE from Hamilton County Emergency 
Management Agency. 
 
Chief Penny reported the PPE had been received.  
 
Resolution – Amending the Rate of Pay for a Newly Promoted Township Employee  
The resolution “Amending the Rate of Pay for a Newly Promoted Township Employee” was presented 
by Mr. Warrick. A motion was made by Mr. Weidman, seconded by Mr. James, to approve the 
resolution and dispense with the second reading. Mr. LaBarbara called the roll.  Vote:  All Aye. 
Resolution No. 2020-89 passed this 1st day of December, 2020. 
 
Mr. James asked if there were injuries in a fire on Needlewood Court and if the house was occupied. 
 
Chief Penny said there were no injuries, it was occupied by renters and the investigation is ongoing. 
 
ROADS, MAINTENANCE & RECREATION ITEMS 
Mr. Kellums reported he had asked the concrete contractor to include a handicap ramp in our current 
project at the Administrative Complex.    
 
Mr. Kellums said crews have been out salting due to snow and continue with leaf pickup. 
 
Mr. Kellums reported he had received notice from Hamilton County Recycling and Solid Waste 
District that, for the second year in a row, Sycamore Township achieved the highest diversion from 
landfill rate of any Township in Hamilton County. He said residents are doing a great job and noted the 
Township’s Trash Bash and brush chipping services help with that. 
 
Mr. James asked when the recycling containers behind the Administration Building will be available 
again. 
 
Mr. Kellums answered there will probably not be access to the recycling containers for another month. 
 
Mr. Kellums said he received an email that the State of Ohio that ODOT is getting ready to mill and 
pave Montgomery Road from Stewart Road to Galbraith Road. He said they notified him that the brick 
crosswalks the Township has placed along that stretch of Montgomery Road will not be replaced by 
the State.  He asked the Board if they would like to continue installing those crosswalks through the 
core of the business district noting there are 16 legs to do all these. He said he hasn’t gotten an official 
price, but it will be about $140,000.00.   
 



Mr. Weidman asked for a more formalized price on that saying TIF funds could be used.   
 
Mr. Kellums said the $140,000.00 estimate is accurate and added this is a good opportunity with fresh 
asphalt to get these crosswalks done.  He confirmed the Township may use TIF funds for this project.   
 
The Board asked questions of Mr. Kellums. 
 
Mr. Weidman made a motion to allow Tracy Kellums to work with ODOT to replace the crosswalks.  
Mr. LaBarbara seconded.   
 
Mr. James asked Mr. Warrick if he had financial concerns about installing the crosswalks. 
 
Mr. Warrick answered he had none.   
 
Mr. LaBarbara called roll.  Vote:  All Aye. 
 
Mr. Kellums stated the Maintenance Storage Building construction project continues.  
 
Mr. Kellums reported Duke Energy is in the process of lowering gas mains on Kugler Mill Road in 
preparation for the Kugler Mill Road reconstruction project. 
 
Mr. Kellums reported the Parks Advisory Committee is working on the parks survey and has gathered 
questions together. He said the survey will be distributed to Board before it goes out to the public. 
 
Mr. LaBarbara said he walked Bechtold Park with Steve Reutelshofer to look for a good location for 
pickle ball courts. 
 
Mr. Weidman congratulated Mr. Kellums on doing a great job on the Sycamore Road Reconstruction 
Project saying it looks great. He then asked about a finish date for the Maintenance Storage Building 
Project. 
 
Mr. Kellums said hopes to be in by end of the year.  He said there have not been a lot of workers 
present lately. 
 
Mr. James asked if there is anything in our contract which provides for financial penalties for the 
delay. 
 
Mr. Kellums answered yes, there is.   
 
Mr. Warrick said Mr. Kellums has had many conversations with them about it. 
 
Mr. James asked about updates to the Park rules. 
 
Mr. Warrick stated Mr. Petty is working on getting a finished product ready for the Board to review. 
 
 



 
PLANNING AND ZONING ITEMS 
Mr. Miller updated the Board on zoning cases coming before the Sycamore Township Zoning 
Commission on December 14th and potentially being heard by the Trustees in January. 
 
Mr. Miller reported Case 2020-07Z and 2020-08P1 is a combined Zone Change and PUD1 application 
at 8760 Montgomery Road for a proposed 22-unit multi-family development.  He pointed out the 
Trustees will not see the PUD1; they will only be reviewing the proposed rezone to multi-family. 
 
Mr. Miller reported Case 2020-09P2, 8469 Blue Ash Road, will also be heard by Zoning Commission 
on December 14th. He stated the case includes a new tenant proposed for an existing multi-unit 
building with a parking lot expansion which increases ISR (impervious surface ratio) for the site.  He 
said the property owner is taking this opportunity to beautify the site with updated landscaping. He 
said the current parking lot is gravel and reviewed the areas where landscaping would be updated. 
 
Mr. James asked about the timeline for review of the Zone Change by the Trustees and if the 
cancellation of the first meeting in January causes an issue. 
 
Mr. Miller stated he will consult with Mr. Desai. 
 
Mr. Weidman asked about the possibility of the applicant going to Zoning Commission in January 
instead. 
 
Mr. Miller stated he does not think the applicant will want to do that because they had originally 
applied in November but had to resubmit due to clerical errors in the application and are now ready to 
move forward. 
 
Mr. LaBarbara suggested a special meeting. There was discussion about holding the hearing remotely. 
 
Mr. Miller reported the new phone system has been installed and employees have access to voicemail 
as well as an option for mobile twinning to enable employees to work from home more easily. 
 
Mr. Miller stated he had a nuisance resolution for the Board’s consideration.  He stated there is a 
resident who has refused to remove a few bags of garbage from their property.  He said he would not 
hire a contractor but is hoping the nuisance declaration will encourage them to take care of the 
problem.  He said the Township received a complaint about it and attempts to get the owner to remove 
the bags have failed. 
  
The resolution “Providing for and Authorizing Removal of Vegetation, Garbage, Refuse and Other 
Debris and Declaring a Nuisance for the Property Located at 12198 Fieldsted Drive, Sycamore 
Township, OH 45249” was presented by Mr. Miller.  
 
Mr. Weidman asked if the Planning & Zoning Department has had conversations with the owner.   
 



Mr. Miller stated he has not made contact, but the department has sent letters and left cards at the 
property owner’s door.  He said Mr. Clark inspected the property again yesterday morning and found 
the trash bags are still there. 
 
Mr. Desai asked if there have been complaints and if the house looks occupied.   
 
Mr. Miller said there was a complaint, and the house appears occupied.  
 
Mr. Desai said if numerous attempts have been made to contact the owner, the Trustees have to 
acknowledge the concerns of surrounding property owners.  
 
Mr. James asked how the nuisance resolution would be communicated to the owner. 
 
Mr. Miller explained the process noting if the bags are removed, the problem goes away with no liens 
or penalties. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. James, seconded by Mr. Weidman, to approve the resolution and dispense 
with the second reading. Mr. LaBarbara called the roll.  Vote:  All Aye. 
Resolution No. 2020-90 passed this 1st day of December, 2020. 
 
Mr. Miller gave an update about the property maintenance issues at the former Drake Motel and 
Carrousel properties on Reading Road.  There was a discussion about the problems there and the need 
for the property to be secure. 
 
Mr. James asked about following up with the property owners on Kugler Mill Road in regard to the dead 
trees in the berm. 
 
Mr. Miller answered he already sent an email out to our attorney. 
 
LAW DIRECTOR ITEMS 
Mr. Desai reported the expiration deadline for local governments to hold remote meetings has been 
extended through July 1st of next year. 
 
Mr. Desai said less than half of the eligible permit holders have submitted for funds available for relief 
for bars and restaurants negatively affected by the pandemic. 
 
ADMINISTRATOR ITEMS 
Mr. Warrick reported the lack of applications for the available bar and restaurant money doesn’t 
surprise him because it is a very confusing thing.  He said we had set up a plan modeled after the City 
of Montgomery and were then told by Hamilton County not to do it that way. He said there is money 
available, but it is very confusing what can be done with it. 
 
Mr. James asked if there is an application deadline. 
 
Mr. Warrick answered yes but he did not know the exact date. 
 



Mr. Kellums said there was a deadline for the Township to submit for our grant which we met. He said 
Hamilton County does not have the manpower to do it and their comment to him was it’s very 
confusing and will be a mountain of paperwork. Mr. Kellums noted the Township does not have a 
large staff to take care of a mountain of paperwork either. Mr. Kellums said we are still working on it. 
 
Mr. Warrick said we have not yet received the funds and once we do, we will make sure we can meet 
any deadline. 
 
Mr. James asked if there is a cap of the grant amount that a bar or restaurant could receive with from 
this program. 
 
Mr. Warrick answered there is, but it changes. He noted the program is confusing, but it is our intent to 
take advantage of it and help some restaurants in the Township. 
 
Resolution – Authorizing a Contract with the International Association of Fire Fighters Union 
Local 3907 
Mr. Warrick stated he has a resolution for the Board’s consideration approving the Collective 
Bargaining Agreement.  He noted the pay raises agreed upon were four percent the first year and three 
percent the second and third year.  Mr. Warrick said they were offered the same health insurance cost 
offered Township wide and that seeding for those choosing a Health Savings Account was negotiated 
at 100% the first year, 75% the second year, 50% the third year. He noted the same seeding will be 
offered for non-union employees.  He explained if employees move from the existing HRA program to 
the HSA and begin to contribute on their own, that cost will move from the Township program forever. 
He noted this will help rectify the million-dollar deficit we have.  Mr. Warrick noted some of the 
Collective Bargaining Agreement language is kind of strange, but it comes with a long history.  He 
pointed out the Township does not have a problem with our firefighters and there is no pressing need 
to make any big changes.  Mr. Warrick reported the union has ratified and signed this contract. 
 
The resolution “Authorizing a Contract with the International Association of Fire Fighters Union Local 
3907 and Dispensing with a Second Reading” was presented by Mr. Warrick. A motion was made by 
Mr. Weidman, seconded by Mr. James, to approve the resolution. Mr. LaBarbara  called the roll.  Vote:  
All Aye. 
Resolution No. 2020-91 passed this 1st day of December, 2020. 
 
Mr. James commented this was a good negotiation on all sides. 
 
Resolution – Declaring Township Property as Surplus and Obsolete and Authorizing Its 
Disposition 
Mr. Warrick said the Township has upgraded some copiers, some of which to enable them to be more 
compatible with working from home. He said there are some very old copiers no longer needed and he 
had a resolution for the Board’s consideration to dispose of them.  
 
The resolution “Declaring Township Property as Surplus and Obsolete and Authorizing its Disposition, 
Dispensing with a Second Reading and Declaring an Emergency” was presented by Mr. Warrick. A 
motion was made by Mr. Weidman, seconded by Mr. James, to approve the resolution. Mr. LaBarbara  
called the roll.  Vote:  All Aye. 



Resolution No. 2020-92 passed this 1st day of December, 2020. 

Mr. James asked how we  go about disposing of this equipment. 

Mr. Miller answered the company we have been working with offered to take them off our hands. 

Mr. Warrick reported there will undoubtedly be some CARES Act invoices between the next Trustees 
Workshop and the end of the year that will have to be paid by the December 31st deadline to take 
advantage of the greatest amount of money available through the program. 

Mr. James asked if the money has already been appropriated. 

Mr. Warrick answered yes. He said he also has to ask if this is ok with Fiscal Officer Porter. 

Mr. Porter indicated his approval. 

Resolution – Authorizing Electronic Signatures on Checks for Future CARES Act Expenditures 
The resolution “Authorizing Electronic Signatures on Checks for Future CARES Act Expenditures and 
Dispensing with a Second Reading” was presented by Mr. Warrick. A motion was made by Mr. 
Weidman, seconded by Mr. James, to approve the resolution. Mr. LaBarbara  called the roll.  Vote:  
All Aye. 
Resolution No. 2020- passed this 1st day of December, 2020. 

Mr. Warrick said it is likely we will have to have a remote special meeting to pay some bills before the 
first meeting in January. 

Mr. Weidman suggested combining that with the Zoning Hearings. 

TRUSTEE ITEMS 
Mr. Weidman suggested the next meeting on December 15th be held remotely via Zoom.  He stated it 
appears most communities in Hamilton County are meeting by Zoom and many have closed their 
offices completely. He noted the spike in COVID cases is predicted to continue and there are now two 
additional COVID-19 cases on this campus so it would make the most sense to hold the meeting 
remotely. Mr. Weidman noted his concerns because his wife has compromised immunity saying he 
thought the Board had decided to hold this week’s meetings remotely, but Mr. LaBarbara must have 
changed his mind. 

Mr. James said that is fine with him.  He then said he hopes everyone had a happy and healthy 
Thanksgiving. 

Mr. LaBarbara acknowledged Township business Aynies Catering, 10750 Montgomery Road, for 
receiving the Clean Kitchen Award from Hamilton County Public Health. 



ANNOUNCEMENT CHANGES 
Mr. LaBarbara stated there will be a Citizen Finance Committee Meeting on December 10th and the 
Dillonvale Luminaria has been cancelled.  He then referred people to the website calendar for details 
on upcoming meetings. 

A motion to adjourn was made by Trustee Weidman and seconded by Trustee James.  Vote:  All Aye. 

End regular session:  10:40 a.m.  

___________________________ 
Jim LaBarbara, Chairman 

___________________________ 
Thomas C. James, Jr., Trustee 

___________________________ 
Thomas J. Weidman, Trustee 

___________________________ 
Robert C. Porter III, Fiscal Officer 

____________________________ 
Ray Warrick, Administrator 
Workshop Minutes 12/01/2020 

/s/ Jim LaBarbara

/s/ Thomas C. James, Jr.

/s/ Thomas J. Weidman

/s/ Robert C. Porter, III

/s/ Ray Warrick


